
BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 

June 01, 2020 

7:00 PM 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  June 01, 2020 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

June 01, 2020 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Commissioner Garry Meiggs 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 4. Public Hearings 

A. Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget -  Ken Bowman 

B. Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Resolution 2020-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions - 

Ken Bowman 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  June 01, 2020 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

C. Boomerang Design - Fee Proposal 

ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tourism Development Authority 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - April 29, 2020 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes - May 4, 2020 

C. BOC Meeting Minutes - May 13, 2020 

D. Budget Amendments 

E. School Budget Amendments 

F. DMV Monthly Report 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

H. Tax Collection Report 

I. Set Public Hearing - South Mills Landing 

ITEM 8. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 9. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 

Reconvene Board of Equalization and Review 

ITEM  Adjourn Board of Equalization and Review 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget 

 

Attachments: FY20-21 Budget Message FINAL_Signed (PDF) 

20-21 schedule of board adjustments (DOCX) 

20-21 BUDGET ORDINANCE (DOC) 

Schedule of Fees 20-21 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

The annual budget process requires a public hearing to allow an opportunity for public input on 

the next fiscal year's budget.  The attached documents include a synopsis of the changes 

discussed during the budget work sessions conducted in April and May, as well as a copy of the 

proposed Budget Ordinance for adoption.  The County Fee Schedule is also included to be 

adopted with the budget ordinance. 

 

Recommendation: 

Upon completion of hearing, add the FY2020-21 Budget Ordinance to the agenda.  Approve 

attached FY2020-21 Budget Ordinance along with Fee Schedule. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 4



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

-2
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

F
IN

A
L

_S
ig

n
ed

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

-2
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

F
IN

A
L

_S
ig

n
ed

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

-2
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

F
IN

A
L

_S
ig

n
ed

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

-2
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

F
IN

A
L

_S
ig

n
ed

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

-2
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

F
IN

A
L

_S
ig

n
ed

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

-2
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 M

es
sa

g
e 

F
IN

A
L

_S
ig

n
ed

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



 

1 

 

 

FY 2020-2021 Budget 

 

Schedule of Changes Per Budget Work Sessions 

The Budget Officer’s Proposed Budget has been accepted by Board of Commissioners with the 

following exceptions: 

General Fund 

Dept. Item Submitted Change Proposed  

106900 Budget for Albemarle United Way          1,000          1,000       0  Decrease/BOC 

      

      

      

      

     

      

      

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      
 

 

 

 

GF: General Fund 

CPT: Community Park Trust  

SCRF: School Capital Reserve  

DSGS: Dismal Swamp Gift Shop 

CIP: Capital Improvement Plan 

 

4.A.b

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 s
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
b

o
ar

d
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2020-06-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF  

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF  

CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA,  

RELATING TO THE FY 2020 – 2021 BUDGET 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CAMDEN 

COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA: 

 

ARTICLE I. BUDGET ORDINANCE 

 

 This Budget Ordinance per G.S. 159-13 hereby incorporates, in its entirety, this 

Budget for the County of Camden for FY 2020-2021, adopted by the Board of 

Commissioners on June 1, 2020. Said Ordinance may hereafter be referred to as the 

“Budget Ordinance”. The levy of the county-wide Tax Rate(s) and Fees affecting any and 

all county managed Funds will accompany and be adopted simultaneously with this 

Budget Ordinance unless amended per G.S. 159-15. 

 

ARTICLE II. GENERAL FUND 

 

 SECTION 1 – Appropriations: The following amounts are hereby 

appropriated in the General Fund for the operation of county government and its 

activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021 in 

accordance with the Budget Ordinance and the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for this county. 

 

 Governing Body ............................................................................... $104,317 

 County Administration....................................................................... 236,625 

 Elections ............................................................................................. 141,557           

 Finance...................................................................... ......................... 214,514 

            Personnel .............................................................................................. 65,982  

 Tax Supervisor ................................................................................... 508,530 

            Legals ................................................................................................... 40,000 

 Register of Deeds ............................................................................... 268,087 

 Planning ............................................................................................. 347,091 

 Inspections ......................................................................................... 212,924 

 Economic Development Commission................................................ 125,601

 Building & Grounds ........................................................................... 453,636 

 Sheriff ............................................................................................. 1,924,313 

 School Resource Officer (SRO)......................................................... 135,080 

 Jury Commission ........................................................................................ 96 

 Court Facilities ..................................................................................... 62,140 

 Public Works Administration ............................................................ 150,953 

 Fleet Vehicles......................................................................................... 7,050 

 Traffic .................................................................................................... 3,060 

 Solid Waste ........................................................................................ 743,715 

 Public Health ...................................................................................... 125,555 

 Extension............................................................................................ 171,308 

 County Public Library........................................................................ 234,292 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 2 
 

 Parks & Recreation ............................................................................ 300,301 

 DDJP (JCPC) ....................................................................................... 80,384 

 Senior Center ..................................................................................... 232,787 

 Post-Employment Benefits .................................................................. 12,750 

 Non-Departmental.............................................................................. 210,729 

 Soil/Water Conservation ...................................................................... 79,786 

 Capital Outlay/Debt Service ........................................................... 1,089,189 

 Special Appropriations: 

Albemarle Commission ............................................................. 7,251 

EMS ....................................................................................... 562,250 

Conservation/Forestry .............................................................. 64,067 

RC&D ........................................................................................... 750 

Central Communications ....................................................... 301,000 

Emergency Management ......................................................... 33,400 

S. Camden Water & Sewer ............................................................... 0     

MLK Funding ............................................................................... 800 

Special Funding ......................................................................... 1,000 

CH&S Fire Commission Four Cents ..................................... 265,686 

South Mills Fire Commission Four Cents ............................. 166,074 

Social Services ....................................................................... 337,056 

Schools – Contribution to Capital Reserve ............................ 405,878 

Schools – Current Expense ................................................. 2,600,000      

Albemarle Hopeline ................................................................... 2,000 

College of the Albemarle ......................................................... 40,000 

Camden Food Pantry.................................................................. 2,000 

Albemarle Food Bank ................................................................ 2,500 

Camden Museum ....................................................................... 1,000 

Alb. Dist. Jail Operations ....................................................... 295,000 

Rural Ready Grant Match ...................................................... 100,000 

Dismal Swamp Visitor’s Center ................................................ 5,000 

4-H Insurance ........................................................................... 53,004 

 Contingency ......................................................................................... 40,000 

 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $13,568,068 

 

 

 SECTION 2 – Revenues:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be 

available in the General Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 

30, 2021. 

 

 Ad Valorem and Vehicle Taxes: 

Budget Year ...................................................................... $8,146,812 

Prior Years Summary ............................................................. 517,700 

Penalties and Interest ............................................................... 50,000 

House Bill 1779 ............................................................................ 100 

 Other Taxes and Licenses: 

State 1 cent Sales Tax ............................................................ 565,000 

Local Sales Tax - Art. 40  ....................................................... 295,000 

                        Local Sales Tax - Art. 42  ....................................................... 182,000 

          

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 3 
 

 Unrestricted Intergovernmental:                             

ABC Profits .............................................................................. 36,000 

Refuge Revenue Sharing............................................................ 8,500 

Beer and Wine Tax .................................................................. 45,000 

Utilities Franchise Fees .......................................................... 700,000 

Medicaid Hold Harmless ....................................................... 460,000 

 Restricted Intergovernmental: 

State Grants – JJDP .................................................................. 64,812 

Soil/Water Funds ..................................................................... 15,000 

Capital Reserve & Transfer Tax for Capital Debt Service .... 187,262 

Court Facilities Fees ................................................................ 21,000 

Alb. Comm. Nutrition Site ......................................................... 6,000 

School Resource Officer .......................................................... 71,000 

School Capital Reserve Fund for School Debt Service ......... 982,806 

Senior Center Grants .................................................................. 7,000 

Senior Center State Grants ................................................................ 0 

Health & Wellness Grant ........................................................... 1,500 

 Fees and Permits: 

Register of Deeds Fees........................................................... 150,450                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Building Permits and Planning Fees ...................................... 103,100 

Land Use Fees .......................................................................... 15,000 

Leased Property ....................................................................... 20,000 

Tire Disposal Dist .................................................................... 14,000 

White Goods Disposal Dist ........................................................ 4,500 

Recyclables ................................................................................ 6,000 

Disposables Tax Distribution ..................................................... 5,000 

Electronics Management ............................................................... 800 

Solid Waste Fee ..................................................................... 300,000 

Cable Franchise Fee ................................................................. 39,000 

Gun Permit Fees ....................................................................... 15,000 

Golf Cart Fees ............................................................................... 200 

Pet/Privilege Licenses ................................................................... 250 

5 Cents Per Bottle Fees .............................................................. 3,600 

Extension Fees ........................................................................... 2,500 

Library Fees ............................................................................... 5,200 

Recreation Fees ........................................................................ 20,000 

Senior Center Participation Fees ................................................ 2,500 

 Sales and Services: 

Jail Fees........................................................... ........................... 2,500 

Sheriff’s Officer Fees ............................................................... 15,000 

Sale of Fixed Assets ................................................................... 3,500 

LESO Sheriff’s Equipment Disposal ....................................... 10,000 

Fines & Forfeitures .................................................................. 60,000 

911 Fees for GIS ........................................................................ 3,900 

 Other: 

Sheriff’s Department Grants & Donations ................................ 1,500 

 Interest...................................................................................... 30,000 

 Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 14,100  

                        Appropriated Fund Balance ................................................... 330,976 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 4 
 

  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $13,568,068 

 

 

ARTICLE III. SOUTH CAMDEN WATER/SEWER DISTRICT FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the South Camden 

Water/Sewer District Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 

2021. 

                        R/O Plant Operation Expenses............................................... 451,184 

 Waste Water Operation Expenses .......................................... 328,116

 Distribution Expenses ............................................................ 456,357 

 Debt Service ........................................................................... 682,087 

    $1,917,744 

  

 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the South Camden 

Water/Sewer District Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 

2021. 

 Sale of Water....................................................................... 1,070,000 

 Sewer Fees ............................................................................. 100,000 

 Connection Fees ....................................................................... 55,000 

 Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 38,050 

 Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 150,000 

 Capital Reserve Fund ............................................................. 203,568 

 General Fund Contribution ...................................................... 97,559 

       $1,917,744 

 

ARTICLE IV. WATER/SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the System Development Fee 

Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of collecting funds from new construction projects 

which will have an impact on the infrastructure of Camden County and establishing 

Membrane Reserve for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Fund Balance Reserve.............................................................. 52,250 

Membrane Reserve .................................................................. 20,250 

 $72,500 

 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the System 

Development Fee Capital Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 

ending June 30, 2021. 

 

System Development Fees ....................................................... 43,500 

Membrane Reserve Contribution ............................................. 20,250 

Interest........................................................................................ 1,000 

R/O Upgrade………………………………………………….. 7,750 

 $72,500 

 

 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 5 
 

 

 

 

ARTICLE V. COURTHOUSE & SHILOH FIRE COMMISSION FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Courthouse and Shiloh Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

 General Expenses ................................................................... 224,493  

 Debt Service ........................................................................... 117,614 

 $342,107 

 

 It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Courthouse and 

Shiloh Fire Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 

30, 2021. 

 

 Fire Tax .................................................................................... 66,421 

 4 Cent County Match ............................................................. 265,686 

 Leased Property ......................................................................... 9,000 

 Interest Earnings ........................................................................ 1,500 

 $342,107 

 

 

ARTICLE VI. SOUTH MILLS FIRE COMMISSION FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the South Mills Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

 General Expenses ................................................................... 147,385 

 Debt Service ........................................................................... 114,767 

 $262,152 

 

 It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the South Mills Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Fire Tax .................................................................................... 41,518 

4 Cent County Match ............................................................. 166,073 

Grant………………………………………………………….47,250 

Fund Balance…………………………………………………. 6,811 

Interest........................................................................................... 500  

            $262,152 

 

ARTICLE VII. SOCIAL SERVICES 

 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Social Services Fund for 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Public Assistance ................................................................... 176,002 

Administrative Expenses .................................................... 1,134,395 

 $1,310,397 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 6 
 

 

 It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Social Services 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

   

County Appropriations........................................................... 438,098 

State/Federal Funds ................................................................ 872,299 

  $1,310,397 

   

ARTICLE VIII. JOYCE CREEK DRAINAGE PROJECT FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Joyce Creek Drainage 

Project Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Watershed Projects & Expenses ............................................ $45,085 

  

   

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Joyce Creek 

Drainage Project Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 

2021. 

Watershed Improvement Fee ................................................... 44,085 

Miscellaneous ............................................................................ 1,000 

 $45,085 

 

 

ARTICLE IX. REVALUATION RESERVE FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Revaluation Reserve Fund 

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Reserved for Revaluation Expenses......................................... $2,000 

 

 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Revaluation 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Fund Balance Appropriated .............................................................. 0 

Interest........................................................................................ 2,000 

 $2,000    

 

 

ARTICLE X. CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Capital Reserve Fund for 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 190,204 

Capital Projects ...................................................................... 404,500 

USDA Debt Reserve .............................................................. 540,300 

 $1,135,004    

 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 7 
 

 It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Capital Reserve 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

   

Land Transfer Tax Collections .............................................. 450,000 

Investment Earnings................................................................. 10,000 

County Contribution .............................................................. 325,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 350,004 

                     $1,135,004 

 

 

ARTICLE XI. SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the School Capital Reserve 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 576,927 

School Capital Outlay ............................................................ 405,878 

Fund Reserves ................................................................................... 0 

Camden Plantation Funds for Capital Outlay ........................ 150,000 

           $1,132,805 

 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the School Capital 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021.  

 

Local Option & Restricted Sales Tax .................................... 979,805             

Investment Earnings................................................................... 3,000 

Camden Plantation ................................................................. 150,000 

 $1,132,805  

            

 

 

ARTICLE XII.     DISMAL SWAMP VISITOR CENTER FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Dismal Swamp Visitor 

Center Fund for the purpose of operating the Center with funds received from NCDOT 

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

 

Center Operating Expenses .................................................. $160,018 

 

DOT Funds............................................................................. 142,857 

Gift Shop Contribution ............................................................ 12,000 

General Fund Contribution ........................................................ 5,000 

Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 161.00 

Tourism Authority Contribution ....................................................... 0 

 

 $160,018 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Dismal Swamp Gift Shop 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 8 
 

 

Gift Shop Revenues ............................................................... $37,000 

 

Gift Shop Expenses ................................................................ $37,000 

  

 

       

ARTICLE XIII.  FEREBEE COURTHOUSE TRUST FUND 

 

 For purposes of summary only, the following amounts are hereby appropriated in 

the Nancy M. & H. C. Ferebee, III Courthouse Trust for the restoration of the 1847 

Camden County Courthouse for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 

30, 2021. 

   

Fund Reserves .......................................................................... $1,530 

 

Trust Fund Balance .................................................................. $1,530 

 

 

ARTICLE XIV. COMMUNITY PARK TRUST FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Community Park Trust 

Fund for the upkeep and maintenance of the Community Park, Senior Trail, Dismal 

Swamp Bike Trail, Shiloh Landing and One Mill Park for the fiscal year beginning July 

1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Park Operations ........................................................................ 38,850 

Mill Town Pier ......................................................................... 55,000 

 $93,850 

 

 

 

It is estimate that the following revenues will be available in the Community Park 

Trust Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

County Contribution .............................................................. $20,000 

NC Wildlife Contribution ................................................................. 0 

Interest........................................................................................... 500 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 73,350 

 $93,850 

                

                                                                                             

ARTICLE XV.   REGISTER OF DEEDS AUTOMATION ENHANCEMENT 

 AND PRESERVATION FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Register of Deeds 

Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund for the purpose of funding for computer 

and imaging technology for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 

2021. 

Technology .............................................................................. $5,600 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 9 
 

 

Register of Deeds Technology Funds ........................................ 5,590 

Interest............................................................................................. 10 

 $5,600 

 

 

ARTICLE XVI. CODE ENFORCEMENT REVOLVING FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Code Enforcement 

Revolving Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Demolition Expenses ............................................................. $29,600 

 

Fee Collection ............................................................................ 3,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 26,600 

 $29,600 

 

 

ARTICLE XVII. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT UTILITY FUNDS 

 

At the May 5, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting Ordinance No.  2014-05-01 

was approved.  This Ordinance established the South Mills Watershed, the Sawyer’s 

Creek Watershed, the North River Watershed and the Shiloh Watershed and the parcel 

fee rates relating to each watershed.  Any changes to the fee schedule will be adopted 

simultaneously with this budget ordinance. The billing and collection will be in the same 

manner as property taxes. 

 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the South Mills Watershed 

Fund (Fund 36) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Watershed Expenses & Reserve ............................................ $51,125 

 

Estimated Revenue................................................................. $51,125 

   

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the Sawyer’s Creek 

Watershed Fund (Fund 37) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 

30, 2021. 

 

Watershed Expenses & Reserve ............................................ $20,050  

 

Estimated Revenue................................................................. $20,050 

   

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the North River 

Watershed Fund (Fund 38) for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Watershed Expenses .............................................................. $18,050  

 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 10 
 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $18,050 

   

The following estimated revenues will be available for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the Shiloh Watershed 

Fund (Fund 39) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Watershed Expenses .............................................................. $20,050  

 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $20,050 

  

 

ARTICLE XVIII. TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Tourism Development 

Authority budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

General Expenses ..................................................................... 20,940 

Dismal Swamp Visitor Center ................................................... 5,000 

 $25,940 

   

Donations ................................................................................... 1,000 

Occupancy Tax Collections ..................................................... 15,000 

Interest Earnings ........................................................................... 600 

Appropriated Fund Balance ....................................................... 9,340 

 $25,940  

 

 

ARTICLE XIX. TAX PENALTIES SCHOOL FUND 

 

 The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Tax Penalties School Fund 

budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

   

School Current Expense ........................................................... $8,100 

                                                                                     

 It is estimate that the following revenues will be available in the Tax Penalties 

School Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Tax Penalties .............................................................................. 5,000 

Interest on Investments ................................................................. 100 

Fund Balance Appropriated ....................................................... 3,000 

 $8,100 

 

ARTICLE XX. EDC PROJECT FUND 

 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the EDC Project Fund for the 

purpose of developing the ECO Industrial Park in South Mills for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

 

Commerce Park Projects ..................................................... 1,083,444 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 11 
 

Economic Dev Incentive .......................................................... 40,000 

 $1,123,444 

   

County Contribution ......................................................................... 0 

NC Dept of Commerce – Grant ............................................. 119,181 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 964,263 

 $1,083,444 

 

ARTICLE XXI. SCHOOL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 SECTION 1 – The appropriations to the Board of Education, first, shall be made 

from any such funds which are dedicated to the use of the schools, and secondly, shall be 

made from the general county fund revenues to the extent necessary to meet the approved 

appropriation. 

 

 SECTION 2 – For purposes of summary only as the actual figures are contained 

in the Budget Ordinance, the total appropriation for Current Expense is $2,600,000 and 

for Capital Expense is $405,878. 

 

 SECTION 3 – Except as otherwise provided in this Budget Ordinance, this 

Budget Ordinance hereby incorporates by reference in its entirety the “PROPOSED 

BUDGET OF THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2020 and ENDING JUNE 30, 2021” as presented 

to the Board of Commissioners, and all language in said Proposed Budget is incorporated 

into this Ordinance as if it were included within the body of this Ordinance.  Said 

Proposed Budget may hereafter be referred to as the “School Budget”. The county budget 

does not include any special appropriation for the supplement for teachers’ salaries.  This 

will have to be included in the school budget. 

 

ARTICLE XXII. TAX  LEVY 

 

 SECTION 1 – There is hereby levied at the rate of seventy cents (70 cents) per 

One Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2020, 

for the purpose of raising the revenue listed in the General Fund, Article II., Section 2, of 

this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 2 – There is hereby levied at the rate of four cents (4 cents) per One 

Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2020, for the 

purpose of raising the revenue listed in the General Fund, Article II., Section 2, of this 

Ordinance to equal the expenditures listed as CH&S Fire Commission Four Cents and 

South Mills Fire Commission Four Cents in the General Fund, Article II, Section 1, of 

this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 3 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 1 and 2 above is based upon a 

total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $1,146,604,941 and an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-five percent (95.970%) for real property and ninety-six percent 

(96.534%) for vehicles. 

 

 SECTION 4 – There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of one cent (1 cent) per One 

Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for the taxes as of January 1, 2020, 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 12 
 

located within the South Mills Fire Protection District for the purpose of raising the 

revenue listed in the South Mills Fire Commission Fund, Article V., of this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 5 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 4 above is based upon a total 

valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $432,410,011 with an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-five percent (95.970%) for real property and ninety-six percent 

(96.534%) for vehicles. 

 

 SECTION 6 – There is hereby levied at the rate of one cent (1 cent) per One 

Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2020, 

located within the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire Protection District for the purpose of raising 

the revenue listed in the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire Commission Fund, Article IV, of the 

Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 7 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 6 above is based upon a total 

valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $691,769,463 and an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-five percent (95.970%) for real property and ninety-six percent 

(96.534%) for vehicles. 

 

 

ARTICLE XXIII. OTHER PROVISIONS 

 

 SECTION 1 – The Camden County Budget Officer is hereby authorized to 

transfer appropriations within a fund as contained herein under the following conditions: 

 

(a) He may transfer amounts between objects of expenditure within a 

department except salary amounts without limitations. 

 

(b) He may transfer amounts up to $10,000 between departments of the same 

fund with an official report on such transfers at the next regular meeting of 

the Board of Commissioners. 

 

(c) He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency 

appropriation within any fund. 

 

(d) He will assign legal costs to departments based upon the legal issue 

involved. 

 

(e) He is authorized to approve expenditures up to ten thousand dollars. 
 

(f) He may approve acceptance and expenditure of emergency funding from 

state or federal sources (ie. LIEAP)  up to $10,000 with an official report 

on such funding at the next regular meeting of the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

 

SECTION 2 - The Budget Officer and Finance Officer are hereby directed to 

make any changes in the budget or fiscal practices that are required by the Local 

Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 13 
 

(a) As provided by G.S. 159-25(b), the Board has authorized dual electronic 

signatures for each check or draft that is made on County funds. The 

signatures on the County accounts have been approved by the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

(b) All legal outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2020 are hereby carried 

forward and re-appropriated as an amendment to the budget for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 

(c) The Board authorizes one principal account as the central depository for 

funds received by the Finance Director. Other accounts authorized by the 

Board can be used for special purposes such as the enterprise fund and 

various trust accounts. Current accounting techniques shall be used to 

assure that all funds will be properly accounted for in the financial records    

of the County. 
 

(d) Amendments to this Budget Ordinance and any accompanying fee 

schedule, taxes or appropriations are allowed as provided herein or by 

board approval in accordance with G.S. 159-15. 

 

SECTION 3 - The Budget Officer and Finance Officer are hereby authorized to 

enter into contracts/agreements, within funds included in the Budget Ordinance or other 

actions authorized by the Board of Commissioners for the following purposes:  

 

1. Lease of routine business equipment;  

 

2. Consultant, professional, or maintenance service agreements;  

 

3. Purchase of supplies, materials, or equipment where formal bids are not 

required by law;  

 

4. Applications for and agreements for the acceptance of grant funds from 

Federal, State, public, private and non-profit organizations sources, and 

other funds from other government units, for services to be rendered 

which have been approved by the Board of Commissioners;  

 

5. Construction and repair projects within the budget limits or as approved 

by the Board of Commissioners;   

 

6. Liability, health, life, disability,  casualty, property or other insurance or 

performance bonds;  

 

7. Other administrative contracts which include agreements approved by the 

Board of Commissioners. 

 

All other contracts must be approved by the Board of Commissioners and signed 

by the Chairman of the Board. No other employees or officials may sign contracts on 

behalf of the County unless duly appointed to do so by the Board of Commissioners. 

 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



FY 2020-2021 Budget Page 14 
 

SECTION 4 - County funded agencies are required to submit an audit or other 

detailed financial reports to the County Finance Officer each year.  Approved payments 

may be delayed pending receipt of financial information. 

 

SECTION 5 -It is the policy of Camden County to not absorb any reduction in 

State or Federal grant funds. Any decrease shall be absorbed in the budget of the agency 

or department receiving funding by reducing personnel or department expenditures to 

stay within the County appropriations as approved. 

 

SECTION 6 -Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to 

the Board, the Budget Officer, Finance Director, and the Tax Administrator for direction 

in the carrying out of their duties. 

 
A public hearing on this Budget Ordinance was held on June 1, 2020. 

 

This Budget Ordinance was adopted on the 1st day of June, 2020 

 

    CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

    ______________________________________ 

    George T. White, Chair 

     

    ______________________________________ 

    Clayton D. Riggs, Vice-Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________            ______________________________ 

Karen Davis     Kenneth Bowman 

Clerk to the Board                                          Budget Officer/County Manager 

4.A.c

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



1 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

FY 2020-2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Schedule adopted with Budget Ordinance June 1, 2020 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



3 

 

 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Fee Schedule 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

Building Inspection/Planning ...................................................... 1 

 

GIS Related Fee Schedule ........................................................... 5 

 

Fee Schedule for Abatement of Property................................... 6 

 

Parks/Recreation Policies/Fees ................................................... 7 

 

Register of Deeds Schedule of Fees ............................................. 8 

 

Sheriff Department Fees .............................................................. 9 

 

Pet Licenses ................................................................................... 9 

 

Senior Center Fees ..................................................................... 10 

 

Senior Trail Use Fees ................................................................. 11 

 

Golf Cart Permits and Beer and Wine ..................................... 12 

 

South Camden Water Rate Schedule ....................................... 13 

 

South Camden Sewer Rate Schedule ....................................... 14 

 

Copies of Public Records ........................................................... 16 

 

Public Library Fees .................................................................... 17 

 

Watershed Fees........................................................................... 18 

 

Related Information ................................................................... 19

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



1 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
BUILDING INSPECTIONS AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 
 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

 

RESIDENTIAL, MODULAR, & COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION (UP TO 20,000 SQ. 

FEET) 

 Minimal Required New Construction Permit Fees:  (1) State Fee (Residential only) 

10.00; (2) Base Building Fee 0.25 cents per square foot; (3) Electrical Fee 0.15 cents per 

square foot; (4) Plumbing Fee 75.00; (5) Mechanical Fee 100.00; (6) Insulation Fee 75.00.    

Optional Fees:  Temporary Power Pole 75.00.  Commercial buildings are subject to other 

fees listed here after. 
     

 Base Fee Up to 20,000 Sq. Ft. $0.25/Sq. Ft. Each Sq. Ft. over 20,000 $0.15/Sq. 

Ft. 

 Minimum Fee $100.00 State Fee $10.00 
     

ELECTRICAL    

 Residential Over 500 SQFT $0.15/Sq. Ft. Service Repair $75.00 

 Minimum Fee $75.00 Service Change $75.00 

 Temporary Service $75.00 Mfg. Home Service $75.00 
     

PLUMBING    

 Plumbing (New Installs) $75.00 Plumbing (Repairs) $75.00 
     

MECHANICAL    

 Minimum Fee (New House 

Installs) 
$100.00 Additional Units $25.00 

 Repair/Service 

Change/Upgrade 

$75.00 Same Size Change Out $50.00 

     

INSULATION    

 Minimum Fee $75.00   
     

NATURAL GAS and PROPANE  HOOKUP (RESIDENTIAL & 

COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES) 

$50.00 

     

MANUFACTURED HOMES    

 Singlewide:  $250.00            Doublewide:  $350.00          Triplewide:  $400.00  

 
     

ADDITIONS - Includes Service Systems   

 Up to 400 Square Feet $150.00 Over 400 Square Feet $0.37/Sq. 

Ft. 
     

SWIMMING POOLS & SPAS    

 Inground (Includes Electric) $150.00 Above Ground $50.00 

   Electric for Above Ground $75.00 
     

DETACHED GARAGES, STORAGE, AND UTILITY/ACCESSORY BUILDINGS 

 Minimum Fee/Under 400 Sq. 

Ft. 

$75.00 Over 400 Sq. Ft. $0.18/Sq. Ft. 

 Electric for Accessory 

Structures 

 

$75.00   

     

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



2 

 

 

CARPORT / POLE BARN / POLE SHED (Not Enclosed - Open on at least 2 sides) 

 Minimum Fee $75.00 Over 834 Sq. Ft. $0.09/Sq. Ft. 
     

SINGLE UTILITY INSPECTION     

 Trade Permit Minimum Fee $50.00   
 

 

SIGNS    

 16 Square Feet or Less $0.00 17 - 32 Sq. Ft.   $50.00 

 Over 32 Sq. Ft.   $100.00 Electrical on/for/around Sign $50.00 
     

DEMOLITION  (Fire, Safety, & EPA Regs)  

 Pre-inspection required for safety and hazardous materials and referral to proper channels 

if found. 

$75.00 

     

ALTERATIONS / REPAIRS / IMPROVEMENTS 

 Up to $5000 Gross Retail Price 

Over $5000 Gross Retail 

$75.00 

50% Additions Fees 
     

 Alterations include work within existing structures and upgrading existing services and do NOT include 

Additions, New Construction, and Providing Power to structures not previously having power or New 

Service to existing buildings. 
     

 Farm Buildings are exempt UNLESS: 

• Any electrical installation is performed 

• Any portion of building is used for sleeping quarters 

• Building is used for business rather than personal use of farmer and immediate family 
 

     

MOVING OF ANY BUILDING WITHIN OR INTO THE COUNTY 

 Minimum New Construction Fees  
     

WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS   

 Turbines $2,000 each   

 Reinspections $100.00 each   
     

SOLAR FARMS   

 Panels $.50 per panel (minimum $250)  
 

COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras) 
     

 MECHANICAL:  PLUMBING:  

 Walk-in Cooler $40.00 

ea. 

Minimum Permit Fee $75.00 

 Commercial Cooking Hood $40.00 

ea. 

Per fixture, trap, or like 

devices 

$5.00 

 HVAC Fire damper/smoke 

damper 

$5.00 ea. Per sprinkler head $5.00 

     

 ELECTRICAL    

 Electric duct heater $10.00 ea. 

 Temporary Service w/ Trailer $100.00 

ea. 

 0-100 Each Receptacle/Switch/Fixture $75.00 

 Each additional opening $0.10 ea. 

 Subpanel, transformer, generator $20.00 ea. 

 Fuel dispensers, "freestanding" parking lot light poles, manufactured home pedestals  

$5.00 ea. 

 Exhaust fans/water heater/RAC/Spa/Motors and machinery not specified $5.00 ea. 
 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



3 

 

COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras - Continued) 
     

 GAS    

 Minimum Permit Fee $50.00   

 Per outlet $5.00   
    

NEGLIGENCE FEES    

 Inspection Negligence Fee (Applies To): 

• Inspections called for but not ready 

• Skipping any applicable mandatory inspection 

• Re-Inspections called for without first correcting discrepancies noted by 

inspector 

• Wrong sub-contractor other than on Trade Affidavit 

$100.00 

   

 No Permit Negligence Fee (Applies To): $Varies 

 • Building or Trade Related Activities performed without first obtaining 

and paying for a building permit.  Shall result in overall doubling of 

permit fee. 

 

     

BUILDING PERMIT FEES DUE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE  

 All Building Permit fees must be paid in full at time of permit issuance. 

• Applicants will be notified within 3-5 days after building permit 

application has been processed, reviewed, and approved.  At that time 

permit fees are due. 

• No building permit will be issued without payment of permit fees due. 

 

     

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT 

FEES 

   

     

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES DUE AT TIME OF APPLICATION  

 All fees for Land Use / Development MUST be paid in full at time of APPLICATION. 
     

 Zoning Permit $25.00 Temporary Use Permit  $100.00 
   Variance $500.00 

 Special Use Permit $400.00 Ordinance Text 

Amendment  

$500.00 

     

 Rezoning Fee    

  Up to 10 Acres $650.00   

  Over 10 Acres $650.00 Plus $10 Per Acre  
     

 Interpretation Challenge / Appeal $250.00 *   
     

 Zoning/Floodplain Determination 

Letter 

$25.00   

     

 Subdivision Fee    

  Major Subdivision    

   Preliminary Plan Level $50.00 Per Lot  

   Construction Drawing $50.00 Per Lot  

   Final Plat Level $50.00 Per Lot  

  Minor Subdivision $200.00 Per Lot   

 Planned Development    
     

  Master Plan See Rezoning   

  Preliminary Plan Level $50.00 Per Lot  

  Construction Drawing $50.00 Per Lot  

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



4 

 

  Final Plat Level $50.00 Per Lot  
     

 Commercial Site Plan Review    
  Major $200.00   

  Minor $100.00   

     

 Stormwater Review 

Fees/Deposit 

   

     

  Major Commercial/Residential Subdivision 

** 

  (more than 5 acres) 

$6,000.00  

  Minor Residential/Commercial Subdivision 

  (3 or 4 lots) 

$2,500.00  

  Minor Commercial Site Plan Review  ** 

  

$3,700.00 

 

 

     

 LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY   
     

 

 

Fill Permit $50.00   

 NOTES:    
     

 *  Subject to refund in the case of a successful appeal if so ordered by the Board of 

Adjustment 
     

 ** The County stormwater review deposit / fee will be set up as an escrow wherein the 

applicant recovers any deposits in excess of actual costs incurred, or replenishes the 

escrow if costs drop below $1000 prior to project approval. 
     

  

 A refund of Land Use Development fees will be given if an application is withdrawn prior 

to commencement of the approval process (staff review for Zoning Permits; Board * 

agenda for all other items).  No refund shall be given after any portion of the approval 

process has begun (e.g., zoning permit issued or item placed on Board agenda.) 
  

     

 * - Board of Adjustments, Planning Board, or Board of Commissioners 

  

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



5 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
GIS 

Fee Schedule for Sale of GIS Related Data 

 

Prints 

 

Xerox Copy 

 

Size Black & White Price Color Price 

8 ½ X 11 $0.00 $1.00 

8 ½ X 14 $0.00 $2.00 

11 X 17 $1.00 $5.00 

 

Plotter 

 

Size Black & White Price Color Price 

24 x 36 $10.00 $15.00 

36 x 48 $10.00 $20.00 

 

Camden County Street Maps:    $1.00 

 

 

Electronic Media 

 

Data Files 

 

Data Type Price 

CD $5.00 

GIS Parcel Layer $150.00 

Each additional layer $25.00 

Digital Orthophotography $100.00 

 

 

Customized GIS Work 

 

Any customized GIS projects will be charged a per hour fee of:  $60.00/hr. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



6 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

Code Enforcement 

Fees for Abatement of Property by County 

Grass Cutting ................................................................................. $300/acre 

Grass Cutting .......................................................................... $150/half acre 

Debris Removal .......................................................... $500 plus tipping fees 

Car Removal ..................................................... All Cost Incurred by County 

Administrative Cost (This will be added to each Abatement) ............................... $75.00 

Removal of Structure ................................... All Cost Incurred by County** 

 

 

*Fees are for Chapter 94 for Public Nuisances and Chapter 90 for Abandoned and Junk 

Motor Vehicles 

**This Fee Schedule is only if the County abates the property. If a contractor is hired to 

perform any abatement then the cost will be the contracted price plus an Administrative 

fee. 

***Payment for abatement is due 30 days after the date of the abatement. If the fees are 

not paid a Tax Lien will be applied to the property. 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



7 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Parks & Recreation 

Fee Schedule 

 
 

Recreation Youth Sports Registration Fees: 

 

Youth Volleyball and Basketball ..................................................... $40.00  

Maximum fee per household per season .......................................... $70.00 

Out of County additional registration fee ........................................ $20.00 

 

 
 

Recreation Youth Sports Sponsor Fee: 

 

Team sponsor fee ........................................................................... $200.00 
(Fee pays for team Shirt and Individual Trophies) 

 

 
 

Saturday Night Open Gym for Basketball 

 

County residents ................................................................................. $1.00  

Out of County residents ..................................................................... $3.00 

 
 

Thursday Night Open Gym for Adult Volleyball 

 

County residents ................................................................................. $1.00  

Out of County residents ..................................................................... $3.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



8 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Register of Deeds 

Fee Schedule 
 

 

Deeds of Trust & Mortgages        $64 for 1st 35 pages, $4 for each additional page 

 

Instruments in General Fee           $26 for 1st 15 pages, $4 for each additional page + $2.00 per party 

indexed above 20   

 

Plats                                              $21 per plat 

 

Right of way/ Hwy Plat                $21 for 1st page, $5 for each additional page 

 

Multiple Instrument Fee               $10 additional fee 

 

UCC Recording                            $38 for 2 page document 

 

UCC Recording                            $45 for documents over 2 pages 

 

Non Standard Doc Fee                  $25 

 

Certified Copy of Document      $5 for 1st page, $2 for each additional page 

 

Certified Copy Vital Record       $10 each 

 

Amended Birth & Death            $10 ROD & $15 NC Vital Record 

 

Marriage License                        $60 

 

Delayed Marriage or Birth         $20 including 1 certified copy 

 

Corrected Vital Record               $10 

 

Legitimation                                $10 

 

Military Records                         No Fee 

 

Notary Oath                               $10 

 

Photocopy Plat  (18 x 24)          $3 each 

 

Photocopy legal or letter size     .20 each 

 

Photocopy ledger size                .40 each                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



9 

 

 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Sheriff’s Department 

Fee Schedule 

 
 

Office Fees 

 

Carry Concealed Permit  

 

New ......................................................................................... $90.00 

 

Renew ...................................................................................... $75.00 

 

Weapon Purchase Permit ..................................................................  $5.00 

 

Fingerprints ...................................................................................... $10.00 

 

Civil Process Service 

 

In-State .................................................................................... $30.00 

 

Out of State ............................................................................. $50.00 

 

 

Other 

 

Out of County Mental Patient Transport ....................................... $150.00  

 

Diskette Copy of Photos .................................................................. $10.00 

 
 

Dog/Cat Tag Fee  

 

Annual ....................................................................................... $5.00 

 

Lifetime ................................................................................... $30.00 

 

Kennel Fee ....................................................................................... $20.00 

 
 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



10 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
SENIOR CENTER 

Center Fee Schedule 
1. The Camden County Board of Commissioners permits the use of the Camden Center after 5:00 p.m. Monday 

through Friday to governmental agencies and civic clubs and other clubs benefiting the county without 

charge provided the meeting or gathering is to conduct business pertaining to that agency or club.  

  

2. Other non-profit agencies, clubs (civic clubs, dance clubs, bridge clubs), individuals and associations are 

permitted to use the Center after 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday by paying the following fees: 

 

 Maximum of 2 hours use ............................... $25.00 

Maximum of 4 hours use ................................. 35.00 

Maximum of 6 hours use ................................. 40.00 

Maximum of 8 hours use ................................. 60.00 

Use of the Kitchen (additional) ......................... N/A 

  

3. For-profit firms, agencies, etc. are permitted to use the Center after 5:00 p.m. by paying the following fees.  

A for-profit agency and/or firm would be Tupperware Products, Mary Kay Cosmetics, Bank of Currituck, 

Weight-Watchers, etc.  If an individual or group is attempting to make a profit from a service or item to be 

provided or sold at the Senior Center, it will be considered a for-profit situation. 

 

Maximum of 2 hours use ............................... $50.00 

Maximum of 4 hours use ................................. 75.00 

Maximum of 6 hours use ............................... 100.00 

Maximum of 8 hours use ............................... 120.00 

Use of the Kitchen ........................................... 50.00 

 

4. Rental Fees will not include the use of the Senior Citizens Craft Room, Exercise Room or the office space 

in the Center. 

 

5. Alcoholic beverages are not permitted in the Senior Center or elsewhere on County property. 

 

6. No confetti or like material is allowed in the Center.  No streamers or like objects are allowed to be hung 

from the ceiling of the Center.  All trash and garbage must be removed by the user. 

 

7. Individuals signing the Use Agreement form will be required to provide a deposit in the amount of $150 

(made payable to Camden County) for the use of the Center and an additional $150 (made payable to Camden 

County) for the use of the kitchen when obtaining the key to the Center.  Fees are to be waived for Volunteer 

Fire Departments, Social Services Dept., Cooperative Extension Service, Schools, Homemakers’ Club, 

Lions Club, Junior Women’s Club, Ruritans and similar organizations as well as county employees. 

 

8. Deposits will be returned when the key to the Senior center is returned, providing the facilities are left in the  

condition in which they were found when the user arrived and nothing has been damaged or left improperly 

cleaned and all furnishings and furniture have been returned to their original places.  

 

9. Additional fees will be assessed for the following items and charged to any and all parties using the facility. 

Facility not left clean and orderly ........................ $50.00 

Key not returned the next business day ............... $10.00 per day/$25 for Lost Key 

Key not returned within three business days ....... forfeit deposit 

Damage of facility or contents* ........................... forfeit deposit 
*additional charges (legal and monetary) may apply depending on damage 

 

10. Special use considerations not addressed in this policy require County Manager approval. 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



11 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY  
SENIOR CENTER 

Trail Fee Schedule 

 

 
1. For events not requiring the provision of any chairs or other equipment, the fee 

shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00) and such fee shall be in addition to any 

other fees required under this schedule. 

 

 

2. For events requiring electricity, the fee shall be ten dollars ($10.00) per hour and 

such fee shall be in addition to any other fee required under this schedule. 

 

 

*Fee is required prior to Trail use. 

 
Policy for Trail use can be obtained through the Camden County Senior Center. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



12 

 

Tax Administration Office 

Fee Schedule 

Golf Cart Permits  

Annual Fee ....................................................................................... $20.00  

Late Listing Fee (for sticker) ........................................................... $50.00  

Non-Compliance ............................................................................ $150.00  

BEER AND WINE FEES  

(License period: May I through April 30 each year)  

Every person engaged in the business of selling beer and wine in the following amount:  

Beer at retail:  

Off premises ....................................................................................... $5.00  

On premises ..................................................................................... $25.00  

Beer "on and off premises" .............................................................. $30.00  

Wine at retail:  

Off premises ..................................................................................... $25.00  

On premises ..................................................................................... $25.00  

Wine "on and off premises" ............................................................. $50.00  

Beer and Wine:  

Beer & Wine "off premises" ............................................................ $30.00  

Beer & Wine "on premises" ............................................................ $50.00  

Beer & Wine "on and off premises" ................................................ $80.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



13 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer 

Water Fee Schedule 
 

WATER SERVICE FEES  
MONTHLY BASE RATE:  
Gallons  Cost  

0-2,000   $25.00 per month  

 

ADDITIONAL MONTHLY USAGE:  

Gallons   Cost  
2001-5000 gal.  $5.50 per 1,000 gal  

5001-10,000   $6.20 per 1,000 gal  

10,001-15,000   $6.90 per 1,000 gal  

15,001-20,000   $7.60 per 1,000 gal  

20,001 and up   $8.30 per 1,000 gal  

 
Local Govt/Board of Education/Commercial Same as above  

Bulk Water (except contracted sales) $6.91 per 1,000 gal  

Fire Service (sprinkler systems) Base Rate per month  

 

Deposits:  
Rent deposit: $200  

Fire Hydrant Meter: $300  

 

Charges & Fees:  
Open/reopen/transfer acct.   $20.00  

Reread meter/our read correct   $15.00  

Reread meter/our read incorrect:  No charge  

Reconnection Fee:    $35.00 7am-3:15pm  

(if not paid by 8am on disconnection day)  $60.00 3:16-5:00pm  

Late payment penalty:    $10.00  

Non-Sufficient Funds:    $25.00  

Meter Tampering fee:    $200.00  

Turn off/Turn off fee:    $15.00 (per occurrence)  

Meter testing fee: if accurate   $15.00 (No chg if more than 2.5% inaccurate)  

Bacteriological    $45.00  

 

Water Connection Fees:  
(includes $1,500 Tap Fee)  

¾ inch   $4,000.00  

1 inch   $5,667.00  

2 inch   $14,833.00  

3 inch   $28,167.00  

4+ inch  *request rate table  

6 inch fire svc  $4,000.00  

Hwy Bore  $2,000.00  
*County installs up to 2 inch lines. User hires Contractor if 

over 2 inches.  

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



14 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
South Camden Water & Sewer 

Sewer Fee Schedule 
 

SEWER SERVICE FEES  
MONTHLY BASE RATE:  
Residential* $29.00; 0 – 2,000 gallons  

Commercial  $40.00; 0 – 2,000 gallons  

 

ADDITIONAL MONTHLY USAGE:  

RESIDENTIAL*   COMMERCIAL  
2001-5000 gal.    $7.50 per 1,000 gal   $8.50 per 1,000 gal  

5001-10,000     $8.20 per 1,000 gal   $9.20 per 1,000 gal  

10,001-15,000     $8.90 per 1,000 gal   $9.90 per 1,000 gal  

15,001-20,000    $9.60 per 1,000 gal   $10.60 per 1,000 gal  

20,001 and up    $10.30 per 1,000 gal   $11.30 per 1,000 gal  

 
*RESIDENTIAL: Includes Apartment & Townhouse Units  

 

GOVERNMENTAL & SCHOOLS:  

Will be charged 2 times Commercial Rate for Base Fee & Additional Usage 

  

HIGH STRENGTH: $11.50 each additional 1,000 gallons  
Day Care, Hospitals, Nursing Homes, Laundromats, Restaurants, Doctors, Dentists, Beauty Shops, 

Grocery Store, Convenient Store, Funeral Homes, Car Washes, Dry Cleaners  

 

CONNECTION FEES  
SEWER TAP FEE:  
Low pressure main with ¾ inch water service: $8,300  

Gravity 4” connection: $ 3,500  

 

COMMERCIAL: Fees are based on water meter size  

The cost of sewer connection with larger than ¾ inch water service will be the responsibility 

of the owner, with the possibility of capacity fee being paid over time of 3-5 yrs. with no 

interest.  

 

SEWER CAPACITY FEE:  

¾ inch  $ 7,400  

1 inch  $12,333  

2 inch  $39,467  

3 inch  $78,933  

4+ inch *request rate table  
 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



15 

 

ADDITIONAL FEES/FINES  

Parts and Labor:  
For changing service size, location, or repairs for damage to the districts 

property.  

Parts:  

Calculated at current price of materials due to the fluctuation of the market 

plus 20%.  

Labor:  

$35 per man per hour  

$75 per hour for backhoe  

$10 per foot for bores up 2”  

Repairs requiring contracted labor will be charged at invoice cost.  

Fines for Violation of Fats, Oil and Grease Control Ordinance  
Minor Violations 

Offense  1st Offense  2nd Offense  3rd Offense  4th Offense & Up  

Failure to submit 

records  

Warning  $100  $150  $500  

Inspection 

hindrance  

Warning  $100  $150  $500  

Failure to 

maintain on-site 

records  

Warning  $100  $150  $500  

Failure to meet 

sample standards  

Warning  $100  $150  $500  

Moderate Violations  

Offense  1st Offense  2nd Offense  3rd Offense  4th Offense & Up  

Failure to 

maintain 

interceptors in 

proper working 

order  

$150  $300  $500  $1,000  

Failure to clean 

out interceptor 

every 30 days  

$150  $300  $500  $1,000  

Major Violations  

Source of sewer blockage (minimum) $500 and not more than $10,000 plus cost of cleaning lines  

Source of sanitary sewer overflow(minimum) $1,000 plus cost of cleaning lines  

Falsification of records $1,000  

*updated August 2, 2010  

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



16 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Public Records 

Fee Schedule 
 

 

 

Copy Fees: 

 

Public Records (Black/White) 

 

8 ½ x 11 and 8 ½ x 14 ................................................................. $.15/page 

 

With printed pictures .................................................................. $.30/page 

 

11 x 17 ......................................................................................... $.35/page 

 

Public Records (Color) 

 

8 ½ x 11 with Pictures ................................................................ $.50/page 

 

 
 

*Counties are not required to create a public record that is not already in existence. 

However, the municipality may elect to create the record if it determines that the record 

will provide an ongoing benefit to the county and/or its citizens. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



17 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Public Library  

Fee Schedule 
 

 

 

Copy Fees: 

 
8 ½ x 11 and 8 ½ x 14 (Black /White) ........................................ $.10/page 

 

8 ½ x 11 and 8 ½ x 14 (Color) .................................................... $.25/page 

 

11 x 17 (Black /White)................................................................ $.20/page 

 

11 x 17 (Color) ............................................................................ $.50/page 

 

Incoming Fax .............................................................................. $.10/page 

 

Outgoing Fax……………$1.00 up to 10 pages, add’l $.10/page over 10 

(local & toll free)  

 

Outgoing Fax……………$1.25 up to 10 pages, add’l $.10/page over 10 

(long distance)  

 

Inter Library Loan .............................................................................. $3.50 

 

Proctoring ................................................................................... No Charge 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



18 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Stormwater/Watersheds 

Maintenance Fee Schedule 

 

Rate Structure 
$  1. FCPA   

+ $  2. ERU     

+ $  3. GA   

= $  Total Fee/Parcel 

 

1. FCPA – Fixed Cost Per Account =  Currently Estimated at .64 per Parcel 

 

2. ERU – Impervious Area Rate -Equivalent Residential Units Rate  
**Average Impervious Area of a Single Family Residence = 4,500 sq. ft. = 1 ERU (Equivalent 

Residential Unit) which is approximately 1/10 of an acre.   

 

3. GA – Gross Acreage Rate in $/acre - See Table Below  

 

 

Rate Table 
    
 

 

Watersheds FCPA ERU Rate GA Rate Total Fee 

North River $.64/Parcel $10.00/ERU $.25/Acre $10.89 

Sawyer's Creek  $.64/Parcel $10.00/ERU $.25/Acre $10.89 

Shiloh  $.64/Parcel $10.00/ERU $.25/Acre $10.89 

South Mills  $.64/Parcel $12.80/ERU $.32/Acre $13.76 

    Per Single Family Home 

 
 

 

*exemptions itemized in the stormwater ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



19 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Approved Fee Schedule Certification 

 

Continuing authority of commission 

Nothing contained in the provisions of this schedule shall be construed to prevent the 

County Board of Commissioners from imposing, from time to time as it may see fit, 

such license taxes as are not specifically defined or included in this schedule, or from 

increasing or decreasing the amount of any fee when not in conflict with State or Federal 

law. 

 

Same-False statements 

Any person who willfully makes a false statement on any fee application shall be guilty 

of a misdemeanor. 

 

The forgoing instrument was duly approved and adopted at a meeting of the Camden 

County Board of Commissioners, said meeting date June 1st, 2020. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

G. Tom White, Chairman   Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
 

4.A.d

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

-2
1 

 (
27

01
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
Y

 2
02

0-
20

21
 B

u
d

g
et

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 4.B 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program 

 

Attachments: Capital Improvement Program 20-24 FINAL (PDF) 

 

Recommendation: 

Upon completion of public hearing, add the 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program to the 

agenda.  Approve attached 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program. 

4.B

Packet Pg. 47



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0-
24

 F
IN

A
L

  (
27

02
 :

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 2
02

0-
20

24
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   March Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Report (PDF) 

 

Summary:  March Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

5.A

Packet Pg. 68



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
12

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2020-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various 

Boards and Commissions 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2020-06-01 (DOC) 

 
Recommendation: 

Approve and adopt resolution. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 76



 
 

Resolution No. 2020-06-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SALARIES AND COMPENSATION  

FOR VARIOUS BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS  

FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 

 

 

Whereas, the Camden County Board of Commissioners desires to provide reasonable 

compensation for service on various boards and commissions of the County; 

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Camden County Board of Commissioners meeting this 

1st day of June 2020 in Camden Village, Camden County, North Carolina does hereby amend the 

following salaries and compensation for the stated boards and commissions  for the period 

beginning  July 1, 2020 and  ending  June 30, 2021, 

 

 

Section 1:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chairman $550.00 per month plus mileage. 

 

Vice-chairman/ $525.00 per month plus mileage.  

Board Member  

  

1. The monthly “salary” of the Board members shall be considered as 

compensation for regularly scheduled meetings of the board per the annual 

Meeting Calendar. Same day attendance at meetings will not be eligible 

for reimbursement – i.e., a closed session in advance of a board meeting.  

 

2. Board members attending Special Meetings and Budget Work Sessions 

will be compensated at a rate of $75 per meeting. Board members will be 

compensated up to $75 for attendance at other board meetings they have 

been appointed to and not already compensated for by those boards.    

 

3. For purposes of reimbursement, eligible meetings would include those in 

which the board members serve and participate by virtue of their position 

and/or in representation of their position as a board member and/or are an 

invited “participant” by staff or agency/department and may include 

Association Ad Hoc Committee meetings, Ground Breakings and Ribbon 

Cuttings or any meeting at the request of the Board of Commissioners in 

the Commissioner’s official capacity.   

 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
02

0-
06

-0
1 

 (
27

03
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
0-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
io

u
s 

B
o

ar
d

s 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
s)



4. The following are not reimbursable expenses:  Attendance to social 

occasions (banquets, meals (except as part of a participatory meeting), 

entertainment, sports, galas, fundraisers, clubs, etc.), or informal or 

telephonic conversations. Also alcoholic beverages, political 

contributions, tips greater than 18%, parking or traffic violations / fines, 

entertainment expenses such as tickets to sporting events or theaters, and 

in room movies.  For any fundraisers the board decides to attend, the 

County will pay for the ticket if the Commissioner’s agree that the event 

benefits Camden County residents and serves a public purpose, however,   

they will not receive meeting pay for attendance. (Must be non-partisan 

and non-profit.) 

 

5. Attendance at Board appointed Board Meetings (i.e. Library, DSS, ADJ) 

will not be reimbursable to Commissioners who are not appointed to those 

boards unless they are requested to attend by the appointee who is unable 

to attend or at the request of the Board of Commissioners in the 

Commissioner’s official capacity.  

 

6. Commissioners shall receive a payment of $150.00 per day for any 

meeting or day for travel to/from meeting, lasting more than four (4) hours 

and out of the county (90 mile radius of the Courthouse).   

 

7. Board members are required to submit in writing a payment request in the 

form of an expense report (via internal form) to the Finance Officer not 

later than the last business day of each month. The report will contain all 

expenses including compensation along with a description of the meeting, 

date, time and place.  

 

8. Special meeting reimbursement requests that exceed seven (7) in a month 

will require Board approval. 

 

Section 2:  BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 

Chairman Compensation - $50 for meeting with Board. $50 per day for Election 

Day, canvass day, and instruction day plus mileage. 

 

Board Members Compensation - $40 per meeting with Board. $40 per day on Election Day 

and canvass day plus mileage. 

 

Chief Judge Compensation - $40 per day for instruction day and canvass day plus 

mileage.  $150.00 per day for Election Day plus mileage.  $20 for pick-up 

day. 

 

Judges Compensation - $20 for instruction day.  Election Day at $120.00 per day. 

 

Assistants Compensation - $20 for instruction day. Election Day at $100.00 per day.   

 

Section 3: PLANNING BOARD AND ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

 Compensation - $30.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
02

0-
06

-0
1 

 (
27

03
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
0-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
io

u
s 

B
o

ar
d

s 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
s)



 

Section 4:  SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 

 

Chairman  Compensation - $35.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

Board Members Compensation - $30.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

 

Section 5:  AGING ADVISORY COUNCIL 

                                   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage and meal if required. 

 

Section 6:                   RECREATION BOARD 

   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 7:                   JURY COMMISSION   

 Compensation - $ 7.25 per hour for hours worked compiling jury list. 

 

Section 8:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

              Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 9:  SENIOR CENTER BOARD 

   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage . 

 

Section 10:  LIBRARY BOARD 

   Compensation - $30.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 11:  AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD & FIRE COMMISSIONS 

   No Compensation 

 

Section 12:  TRAVEL & MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 

All Boards and Commissions are subject to the approved Camden County 

Travel Policy. Mileage will be computed based on home of record and 

return.  Mileage will be reimbursed at the rate established by the Federal 

Mileage Reimbursement Rate for travel as allowed in IRS Publication 15 

for all compensable meetings. Any volunteer or non-paid meetings will 

not qualify for travel or mileage reimbursement without Board of 

Commissioners approval. 

   

Adopted this the 1st day of June 2020. 

 

 

                                                                         _________________________________________ 

                                                                         George T. White, Chairman 

       Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners   

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
02

0-
06

-0
1 

 (
27

03
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
0-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
io

u
s 

B
o

ar
d

s 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.C 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Boomerang Design Fee Proposal 

 

Attachments: Boomerang Design Agenda Summary (DOCX) 

Boomerang Design Fee Proposal (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary, recommendation and supporting documentation attached. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 80



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

 

Meeting Date:   June 1, 2020 

 

Attachments:   Proposal 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, County Manager 

 

Item Title:  Boomerang Design Fee Proposal 

 

 

Summary: 

 

After much deliberation and consideration of the cost for the administration complex 

during the downturn of the economy due to COVID-19, staff was directed to look at 

phasing the project focusing on building the Library first and master planning the entire 

project for the second phase. 

 

After advertising for architectural firms and conducting interviews, Boomerang Design 

was selected for design of the new Library (Phase I).  

 

As requested, they have provided their proposal for professional services for Phase I 

which includes architectural and engineering design services for a one-story building (+/- 

11,700 square ft.) consisting of a Library, a Community Meeting Room, a Commissioner 

and Committee Board Room with support spaces, and a small catering/warming kitchen. 

 

Their services also include design of a master plan for the site (as required by AHJ 

permitting) which will also provide the County with a road map for future building 

development and extension of utility services. Time is of the essence as they understand 

the facility needs to be substantially completed by September 1, 2021. 

 

Master Plan: The services include the master planning of the 7-8 acre site for the 

development of Phase I as well as conceptual design for future building development. 

Their services include overall conceptual design for the entire site development to ensure 

that services, access, connectivity to other 

county facilities, etc. are all addressed and considered for site development. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Acceptance of Boomerang Design's proposal for professional services and authorize the 

Chairman to sign. 

 

5.C.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 A
g

en
d

a 
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

27
07

 :
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 -
 F

ee
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l)



 

 
 

6131 Falls of Neuse Road, Suite 204, Raleigh, North Carolina 27615      tel 919.573.6400     fax 919.573.6495    thinkboomerang.com 

May 12, 2020 

Mr. Bill Cram, Executive Vice President 

MB Kahn Construction Co., Inc. 

101 Flintlake Road 

Columbia, SC 29223 

RE:  Camden County Administrative Complex 

SUBJECT: Fee Proposal 

COMM. NO.: 7016   FILE NO.: A-1.0 

Dear Bill:  

We are excited to have been selected by Camden County, NC for design of their new Library and Civic Center 

(Phase I). As requested, we have provided our proposal for professional services below. 

Base Services Scope 

Boomerang Design will provide architectural and engineering design services for a one-story building consisting 

of a Library, a Community Meeting Room, a Commissioner and Committee Board Room with support spaces, and 

a small catering/warming kitchen.  Our services also include design of a master plan for the site (as required by 

AHJ permitting) which will also provide the County with a roadmap for future building development and 

extension of utility services. Time is of the essence as we understand the facility needs to be substantially 

complete by September 1, 2021. 

Master Plan: Our services include the master planning of the 7-8 acre site for the development of the 

Phase I as well as conceptual design for future building development.  Our services include overall 

conceptual design for the entire site development to ensure that services, access, connectivity to other 

county facilities, etc. are all addressed and considered for site development. 

Phase I: Design for construction of a +/-11,700 sq. ft. building facility to serve Camden County residents.  

The facility will contain a community Library, a Community Meeting Room, a Commissioner and 

Committee Board Room with support spaces, and a small catering/warming kitchen. 

Boomerang will engage independent engineering consultants to provide Civil, Structural, Plumbing, Mechanical, 

Electrical, Fire Protection (if required) and Technology design for the proposed facilities. We will also work with 

Camden County and MB Kahn to design an environmentally sensitive and contextual appropriate facility within 

the available funds.  

Design services shall be provided in the traditional phases of Schematic Design, Design Development, 

Construction Documents, Final Documents, Bidding and Construction Administration. Our base services include 

development of book specifications as required for bidding and those services listed in the draft AIA B133 

document attached. Our base services do not include surveying, geotechnical evaluations, wetland delineations, 

Life Cycle Costs Analysis, LEED design services, cost estimating, landscape design (an allowance to be utilized in 

design for plant materials) commissioning services, or special inspections services. However, these can be 

provided for an additional service if desired. 

  

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(2
70

7 
: 

B
o

o
m

er
an

g
 D

es
ig

n
 -

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l)



Boomerang DESIGN  

Page 2 of 5 

Letter to: Bill Cram 

May 12, 2020 

Meetings  

• Schematic Design: Provide three (3) Schematic Design Meetings (with at least 1-2 at Boomerang’s office in 

Raleigh or by video conference) to: 

1. Solidify the program 

2. Identify existing spaces and future needs 

3. Present up to (2) preliminary master plans for the site and building plan concepts for feedback 

4. Refine selected plan and provide elevations for feedback 

5. Provide refined elevations. Our Schematic Design conceptual plans will include completion of code 

analysis. 

• Design Development:  Provide three (3) Design Development Meetings (with at least 1-2 at Boomerang’s 

office in Raleigh or by video conference) to: 

1. Present further development of the floor plan, elevations, and site plan 

2. Meet with each department to identify all aspects of their individual spaces and develop a project 

scope document that details room by room the items that will be provided in the project construction 

and the items to be provided/purchased separately by the Owner (i.e. furniture, fixtures, and 

equipment). In addition, we would meet with facilities to determine building materials and systems 

desired. 

3. Present final floor plan, elevations, and site plan.  We will also provide a 3D rendering of the facility. 

• Construction Documents:  Provide two (2) Construction Document Meetings (with 1 at Boomerang’s office 

in Raleigh or by video conference) to: 

1. Present 80% complete documents for estimating. Boomerang and our team will review and provide 

feedback to MB Kahn’s estimate. 

2. Present 100% documents for bidding.  Boomerang will go thru all aspects of the drawings and 

specifications to ensure they are acceptable to Camden County before a bid advertisement is 

published. 

• Bidding: 

1. Attend the pre-bid meeting. 

• Construction Administration:  

1. Attend one (1) Construction site visit per month. Should issues with drawings require and additional 

visit, we will provide the additional trip under our basic services. 

Project Funding 

Based upon the above scope, Boomerang Design has prepared an initial conservative Preliminary Program of 

Spaces and coordinated Budget Estimate for the project based upon the type of work, and the overall square 

footage programmed below:  

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(2
70

7 
: 

B
o

o
m

er
an

g
 D

es
ig

n
 -

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l)



Boomerang DESIGN  

Page 3 of 5 

Letter to: Bill Cram 

May 12, 2020 

Preliminary Program of Spaces 

Space Name No. Size (SF)  

 Total 

(SF) 

Space 

Total 

(SF) 

      
Library     

 Main Library and Children's Corner 1 3,700 3,700  

 Community Meeting Space + storage 1 850 850  

 Librarian Office 1 150 150  

 Staff Office 1 120 120  

 Break Room 1 225 225  

  Storage and Book Exchange Prep 1 275 275   

     5,320 

Civic     

 Community Meeting Room 1      1,500  1,500  

 Catering/Warming Kitchen 1 375 375  

  Storage (chairs and tables) 1 150 150   

     2,025 

      
Admin     

 Council Meeting Room 1      1,100  1,100  

  

Council Chambers Closed Session Conference with 

Toilet 1         400  400   

     1,500 

      
Support     

  MIS/Data 2 80 160   

     160 

      
Subtotal    9,005 

Building Support (Restrooms, Mech, Jan, Walls, etc.)   30%   2,702 

      
TOTAL    11,707 

 

  

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(2
70

7 
: 

B
o

o
m

er
an

g
 D

es
ig

n
 -

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l)



Boomerang DESIGN  

Page 4 of 5 

Letter to: Bill Cram 

May 12, 2020 

Budget Estimate 

Phase I New Library, Community Meeting Room, Commissioners Meeting Room 

Construction Costs    

 New Building Construction 11,707  SF  $         2,751,028  

 5% Construction Contingency    $             137,551  

  5% Escalation* Allowance      $             137,551  

Construction Costs Subtotal    $         3,026,130  

     

Non-Construction Costs    

 Proposed A/S/MEP Fees    $             262,828  

 Proposed Civil Fees    $               55,900  

 Surveys & Subsurface Analysis Allowance    $               25,000  

 Construction Testing Allowance    $               40,000  

 Mechanical Commissioning Allowance (required by code)  $                 8,195  

 FF&E Allowance (3% Construction Costs)    $               90,784  

 Advertising Allowance    $                 1,500  

 Permit Review Fees Allowance    $                 7,865  

 Permit Fees   

 incl in Construction 

Costs  

  Prints (Permit Sets) Allowance      $                 1,000  

Non-Construction Cost Subtotal    $            493,071  

     

Total Project Budget      $         3,519,201  

     

* Escalation to midpoint of construction; based upon 5% per year according to latest Turner Construction 

construction index  

 

Consulting Engineers 

Boomerang Design will be utilizing the following engineers for the project: 

Structural Design  Plumbing, Mechanical, Electrical, and Technology Design 

LHC Structural Engineers Progressive Design Collaborative, LTD 

1331 Sunday Dr. #121 3101 Poplarwood Court, Suite 320 

Raleigh, NC 27607  Raleigh, NC 27604 

 

Civil Engineering   

Timmons Group   

1805 W. City, Unit E  

Elizabeth City, NC  

 

  

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(2
70

7 
: 

B
o

o
m

er
an

g
 D

es
ig

n
 -

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l)



Boomerang DESIGN  

Page 5 of 5 

Letter to: Bill Cram 

May 12, 2020 

Schedule 

We recognize the Camden County Library is currently in leased space and the lease ends in September 2021. The 

leased space has issues that necessitate the new building be open by September 2021. As such, Boomerang 

recommends the schedules below.  Note that a quick boundary and topographic survey along with any wetland 

delineations need to occur ASAP. 

Design NTP May 15, 2020 

Schematic Design May 15 – June 30, 2020 

Design Development June 30 – August 3, 2020 

Construction Documents August 3 – November 1 

Bidding & Contracting November 1 – December 1, 2020 

Construction Start December 1, 2020 

Construction Complete September 1, 2021 

 

Sincerely, 

Angela Crawford Easterday, AIA 

/ace 

cc: Vanda Hamrick 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
o

m
er

an
g

 D
es

ig
n

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(2
70

7 
: 

B
o

o
m

er
an

g
 D

es
ig

n
 -

 F
ee

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the Tourism Development Authority that Adam Carver be reappointed for an 

additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 87



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - April 29, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_042920 (DOCX) 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 88



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

2020-2021 Budget/Finance/CIP Work Session 

April 29, 2020; 2:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on April 29, 2020 at 

2:00 PM in the Camden County Public Library.  Due to Gov. Roy Cooper’s executive order 

limiting public gatherings to no more than 10 people to reduce the spread of COVID-19, the 

meeting was accessible by conference call for the benefit of the media and public. 

 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 2:00 PM.  Additional Board 

Members Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak 

and Ross Munro.   

 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, Finance Officer Stephanie Jackson and Clerk to 

the Board Karen Davis.   

 

Schedule 

The Board of Commissioners met with the following to discuss matters relating to the FY 2020-

2021 Budget: 

• South Mills Volunteer Fire Department – Tommy Banks 

• Tax Administration – Lisa Anderson 

• Sheriff’s Office – Kevin Jones 

• Board of Education / School Capital Projects – Dr. Joe Ferrell presented the following 

summary of the Board of Education’s budget requests. 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
29

20
  (

26
99

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 2
9,

 2
02

0)



• College of the Albemarle – Dr. Jack Bagwell 

• Buildings & Grounds / South Camden Water & Sewer – Ken Bowman 

 

Capital Improvement Program 2020-2024 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented an overview of the proposed Capital Improvement 

Program projects: 

 

• Approved/Funded 

⬧ Public Services Complex / Administration Campus 

• Recommended/Unfunded 

⬧ School Capital Improvements – Camden County High School 

⬧ Sewer Service Expansion – US 158 East from Hardees to County Club Road 

⬧ South Mills Waste Water Treatment Plant High Rate Filtration Pond 

⬧ Elevated Water Tower – Northern Camden County 

⬧ Construction of Additional Raw Water Well 

 

• Identified/Unfunded 

⬧ US 158 Sidewalk Extension 

 

Closed Session 

At 5:05 PM Commissioner Ross Munro offered a motion to go into Closed Session for the 

purpose of contract negotiations.  The motion passed unanimously with five commissioners 

voting aye and no commissioner voting no. 

At 5:32 PM, Commissioner Ross Munro offered a motion to come out of Closed Session.  The 

motion passed unanimously with five commissioners voting aye and no commissioner voting no.   

 

Schedule 

County Manager Ken Bowman gave a brief update on insurance, benefit, personnel and special 

appropriations in regard to the proposed budget.   

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting at 6:15 PM for a dinner break. 

 

Schedule 

Chairman White reconvened the meeting at 6:45 PM and continued with the following items for 

discussion by the County Manager: 

• Additional Expenditures 

• Extension / 4-H 

• IT Software / Hardware / Security 

• Senior Center 

• DSS 

• Non-Departmental 

• Debt Service 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
29

20
  (

26
99

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 2
9,

 2
02

0)



• Fund Balance 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White entertained a motion to adjourn.  

Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion to adjourn.  The motion passed unanimously with 

five commissioners voting aye and no commissioner no. 

 

Chairman White adjourned the meeting at 7:45 PM. 

        

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
29

20
  (

26
99

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 2
9,

 2
02

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - May 4, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_050420 (DOCX) 

 

7.B

Packet Pg. 92



 

1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting 

May 4, 2020; 7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on May 4, 2020 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  Due to Gov. Roy Cooper’s executive order limiting public gatherings to no 

more than 10 people to reduce the spread of COVID-19, the meeting was streamed live for the benefit of the media 

and public.  Citizens were invited to submit public comments by sending their remarks via email to the Clerk to the 

Board.  Comments submitted were to be read by the Chairman during the live meeting and entered into the Public 

Record.  In order to abide by the Governor’s order, the County Manager limited the number of staff present at the 

meeting and presented the departmental reports.   

 

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak and Ross Munro.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

None. 

 
ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water 

& Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

2 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

A. Monthly Report – Ken Bowman 

 

 
 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

3 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Chairman White reconvened the Board of Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 4.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Ken Bowman 

 

 
 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

4 

 

 
 

 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

5 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 
30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

6 

 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

B. EMS Agreement – Ken Bowman 

 

   
 

 

 
 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

7 

 

Motion to extend the current Emergency Medical Services Agreement for 12 months and approve as 

presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

C. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Bid Award – Ken Bowman 

 

 
 

Motion to award the reconstruction contract to Holland Construction Company. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

8 

 

D. Commerce Park Access Road – Ken Bowman 

 

The county has received serious interest from a business prospect to lease/purchase a parcel of the county 

owned property (unused spray field) just south of the Commerce Park. In order to accommodate the 

prospect’s needs the county is responsible for providing access from the Commerce Park across two large 

ditches and into the property.  The county has had construction plans prepared and has requested bids to 

install the culverts and construct 160 feet of access road.   

 

 
 

  

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

9 

 

 

  
 

Motion to award the Commerce Park Access Road project to Whitehurst Sand Company for $103,626.75 and 

authorize the Chairman to sign the contract. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

E. Proclamation – Older Americans Month 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

10 

 

Motion to adopt the Proclamation designating May 2020 as Older Americans Month in Camden County. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

ITEM 5. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Planning Board 

 

Camden County Unified Development Ordinance Article 11.5.2A (attached) states Planning Board members shall 

be appointed to 3-year staggered terms with three members being appointed in successive years and four members in 

the following year.   

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Planning Board appointments as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

11 

 

B. Resolution to Appoint Plat Review Officer 

 

 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2020-05-01 appointing Matthew Meads as Plat Review Officer for Camden 

County, North Carolina. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

ITEM 6. CONSENT AGENDA          

 

The Consent Agenda was amended to add Vehicle Refunds as Item 6.N. 

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – March 5, 2020 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2020 

C. BOC Meeting Minutes – April 6, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

12 

 

D. Budget Amendment 

 

 
 

E. School Budget Amendment 

 

   

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

13 

 

 
 

F. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

14 

 

G. Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

H. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

I. Tax Collection Report 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

15 

 

J. 2019-2020 Audit Contracts – On file in the Finance Office 

 

K. Estimated Property Values  

 

 
 

L. Set Public Hearing – 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program 

M. Set Public Hearing – FY 2020-2021 Budget 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

16 

 

N. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

ITEM 7. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

 

• COVID-19 Update 

• Proposed Draft Budget will be posted on the County web site on May 8th for public review. 

• Camden Tourism Development Authority – The annual celebration of the contributions and 

accomplishments of the US travel industry will spotlight resilience and hope in the face of the Coronavirus 

pandemic with this year’s theme: The Spirit of Travel.  Visit the Camden County TDA website for more 

information. 

• Milltown Boat Ramp – CAMA permit has been approved and we should be able to move forward very 

soon with this project. 

• Board of Commissioners Budget Work Session - May 13th, 6:00 PM at the Library 

• Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting and Public Hearing on the proposed FY 20-21 Budget –  

June 1, 2020 at 7:00 PM.  Visit the County web site for instructions on remote access and how to submit 

public comments. 

• Stay safe.  Thank you to everyone for continuing to social distance and limiting gatherings to 10 people or 

less.  We will get through this together. 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

17 

 

ITEM 8. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak reported on the success of the meals being distributed at the Senior Center on a 

weekly basis. 

 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs expressed his appreciation for the many groups throughout the county that are reaching 

out to those in need. 

 

 

ITEM 9. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

The following was provided to the Board for information purposes: 

 

A. Trillium Health Resources Annual Report 

B. Library Report 

C. Register of Deeds Report 

 

ITEM 10. OTHER MATTERS          

 

None. 

 

ITEM 11. ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Chairman White adjourned the meeting at 7:24 PM. 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

 

             

Tom White, Chairman     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners   Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
04

20
  (

26
98

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - May 13, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_051320 (DOCX) 

 

7.C

Packet Pg. 110



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 13, 2020 – 6:00 PM 

2020-2021 Budget / Finance / CIP Work Session 

Camden Public Library 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on May 13, 2020 at 

6:00 PM in the Camden County Public Library.  Due to Gov. Roy Cooper’s executive order 

limiting public gatherings to no more than 10 people to reduce the spread of COVID-19, the 

meeting was accessible by conference call for the benefit of the media and public. 

 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 6:00 PM.  Additional Board 

members present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak 

and Ross Munro. 

 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, Finance Officer Stephanie Jackson, Clerk to the 

Board Karen Davis. 

 

FY 2020-2021 Proposed Budget/CIP 

County Manager Ken Bowman reviewed the following: 

• Compared to the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund budget of $13,280.091, the 

proposed FY 2020-2021 budget proposes $13,568,068 which represents an increase of 

$287,977. 

• The FY 2020-2021 proposed General Fund budget is balanced with $330,976 in fund 

balance to finance County operational expenses.  The FY2019-2020 adopted general 

budget was balanced with $492,149 in fund balance to finance County operational 

expenses.   

• Special Appropriations 

• Major concerns 

• Schedule of Fees – No changes to Schedule of Fees from FY2019-2020 to FY2020-2021. 

• Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions – No changes to Board 

salaries and compensation from FY2019-2020 to FY2020-2021. 

 

Boomerang Architects Revised Proposal 

Angie Crawford Easterday of Boomerang Design and Bill Cram of M.B. Kahn presented to the 

Board a proposal for Phase I of the Administration Complex as well as services to include 

overall conceptual design for the entire site development.  Phase I is the construction of a  

+/-11,700 square foot building to consist of a Library, Community Meeting Room, 

Commissioner and Committee Meeting Room with support spaces and a small catering/warming 

kitchen.  The proposal will be placed on the June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Commissioners for consideration and possible action. 

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
13

20
  (

27
00

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 1

3,
 2

02
0)



COVID-19 Relief Funds 

The federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economy Security (CARES) Act has given North 

Carolina about $3.5 billion to be used by the legislature to combat COVID-19.  Camden County 

will receive $426,810.  The funds must be allocated towards expenses associated with the 

provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency.  

Treasury guidance also states that these funds must be used or obligated by December 30, 2020.  

A plan for the allocation of these funds will be presented to the Board of Commissioners at an 

upcoming meeting for approval and adoption. 

 

County Manager Updates 

The County Manager will be involved in the following upcoming meetings: 

• Camden Commerce Park Preconstruction Conference – Whitehurst Sand Company 

• South Mills Landing Development – Reese Smith 

• Boat Ramp Preconstruction Conference – Layden Marine 

 

Adjourn 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn.  A 

motion was offered by Commissioner Garry Meiggs.  The motion passed unanimously with five 

commissioners voting aye and no commissioner voting nay.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 

PM. 

 

       ATTEST: 

      

 

             

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
13

20
  (

27
00

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 1

3,
 2

02
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendment 

 

Attachments: 2019-20-BA019 (PDF) 

2019-20-BA020 (PDF) 

 

7.D

Packet Pg. 113



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

20
-B

A
01

9 
 (

27
10

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

20
-B

A
02

0 
 (

27
10

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.b

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

20
-B

A
02

0 
 (

27
10

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.E 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

7.E

Packet Pg. 117



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
09

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
09

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
09

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
09

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
09

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
09

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.F 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV Monthly Report July, 2020 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report July, 2020 Renewals Due 8/15/2020 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.F

Packet Pg. 124



7.F.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
 J

u
ly

, 2
02

0 
 (

27
08

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.G 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

7.G

Packet Pg. 126



7.G.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
27

15
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.H 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

7.H

Packet Pg. 128



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
06

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.I 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - South Mills Landing 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Final (DOC) 

Cover Letter (PDF) 

Staff Findings (PDF) 

Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules2 (PDF) 

TRCinput (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary, recommendation and supporting documentation attached. 

7.I

Packet Pg. 130



             

     

 

 

Camden County Planning BoardBoard of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          

 

 

Item Number:        

     

Meeting Date:    June 17, 2020 

 

Attachments:   Master Plan/ Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC Inputs/Draft Terms and 

Conditions/Development Agreement/Development Impact 

Statement/Statement of Consistency with Adopted Policy/ Statement of 

Compatibility 

 

Submitted By:  Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLEItem Title:   Master Plan and Preliminary Plan for South Mills Landing Planned 

Development Major Subdivision  

 

SUMMARY:   

 

South Mills Landing LLC is requesting Master Plan/Preliminary Plan approval for South Mills 

Landing Planned Development.  The following documents have been submitted with package  

Master Plan, Preliminary Plan, Statement of Consistency with Adopted Policy, Statement of 

Compatibility, Staff Findings, Technical Review Committee Inputs, Cover Letter addressing TRC 

comments, Draft Terms and Conditions, Development Impact Statement includes the Physical, 

Market, Environmental, Fiscal and Traffic Impact Analysis, and the Proposed Development 

Agreement. 

 

Typically the Planned Development Master Plan would be approved with the rezoning of the 

property to set out the development standards for the project such as total units, density, setbacks, 

open spaces etc.. The Preliminary Plan would then show more specifics about the design, circulation, 

recreation, open space and other standards required from preliminary plats. In this case a Master Plan 

rezoning was approved along with a Special Use Permit over a decade ago. No progress was made 

for many years and the SUP expired. The PUD rezoning remains while the UDO procedures and 

requirements have been modified.  Therefore the applicant is resubmitting the Master Plan 

simultaneously with the Preliminary Plan as allowed under 151.2.3.19 (C) 3f. 

 

The development consists of 580 single-family and multi-family dwellings, commercial and 

recreational areas with club house, pool, and walking paths.  The subdivision is located within the 

South Mills Core Village area on the north and south sides of Main Street.  The phasing schedule 

anticipation is for build out within 6 to 10 years. 

 

    

South Mills Water Association and South Camden Water & Sewer District have approved water and 

sewer capacity, respectively, for Phase 1 of 129 units.  Water and sewer for additional Phases are in 

the Development Agreement which has not been finalized.  The Technical Review Committee inputs 

are varied and are included in package.   

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Top:  0.5", Bottom:  0.5"

Formatted: Title

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  1.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

7.I.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

F
in

al
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



The existing Storm Water Model is complete and the post Storm Water Drainage Plan will require 

approval of the county storm water engineer.  NCDOT approval has not been finalized.  Upon 

approval of the preliminary plat plan, construction plans will be completed and require approval of 

staff and state and local technical agencies prior to beginning construction. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Motion:  STo set public hearing for July 6, 2020.r July 6, 2020.   

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11.5 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Not Bold

7.I.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

F
in

al
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



7.I.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
 (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



7.I.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
 (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



7.I.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
 (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Page 1 of 11 

 

  

  

  UDO 2020-01-36 

FINDINGS 

South Mills Landing  

Planned Development 

 

  

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

File Reference:  UDO 2020-01-36 

Project Name; South Mills Landing 

PIN:     01-7989-00-43-1290,  

    01-7988-01-49-2837 

                                             
Applicant:   South Mills Landing 

LLC 

                                                Reese Smith, Sr. 

Address:   P.O. Box 9636 

                                    Chesapeake, VA  

 Phone:   (757)  499-4772 

 Email:  reesesr@reesesmithassociates.com 

 

Agent for Applicant:    Bissell Professional Group  

      Mark Bissell 

                                        

Address:            3512 N. Croatan Hwy 

                           Kitty Hawk, NC 27949   

Phone:      (252) 261-3266 

Email:   mark@bissellprofessionalgroup.com   

Current Owner of Record:  Same as applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

Neighborhood Meeting:  January 29, 2020    

Technical Review:   February 11, 2020 

Planning Board:       March 18, 2020 

  Application Received: 1/30/2020 

By:  David Parks, Permit Officer 

Application Fee paid:  $29,000 Check #1672 

Stormwater Review Fee:  $6000 Check #1668 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Land Use Application  

B. Master Plan South Mills Landing PD 

C. Developmental Impact Statement 

D. Traffic Impact Analysis 

E. Proposed Development Agreement 

F. Technical Review Committee inputs. 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST:  Master Plan/Preliminary Plat South Mills Landing Planned Development for 580 (single 

and multifamily) units with commercial and recreational areas.

 

 

 

 

 

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 2 of 11 

 

 

Vicinity Map: 

 

 

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 3 of 11 

 

Core Village Lines 

 

  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 4 of 11 

 

Zoning Map 

 

  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 5 of 11 

 

Flood Zone Map 

 
  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 6 of 11 

 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 7 of 11 

 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 8 of 11 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

 

Street Address:    Parcels located off Main Street and Horseshoe Road  

Location Description:    South Mills Township 

 

 

SITE DATA 

 

Lot size:   Approximately 185 acres.    

 

Flood Zone:   Zone AE/X (Majority in AE Flood Zone)  

 

Zoning District(s):  Base Zoning;   Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

 

Adjacent property uses:       Residential/Agriculture/Woodland 

 

Streets:                                   Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 

 

Street name:                          See Master Plan (Street Names approved by Central Communications) 

 

Open Space:                          Provided:  Approximately 65 acres 

 

Landscaping:                         Landscaping Plan provided   

 

Buffering:                              Per Article 151.5.5.4, a 50’ landscaped vegetative buffer required along  

    all property lines that abut agricultural uses. 

 

Recreational Land:             383 Single Family Lots X 1452sf = 12.76 acres 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 

 

Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:    

 

Distance & description of nearest outfall:   Outfall from North Tract is approximately 1800 feet.  

Outfall from South Tact is adjacent to property (wetlands).    

 

 

TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF (SKETCH PLAN) COMMENTS 

 

1. South Mills Water Association.  No written response. 

2. Albemarle Regional Health Department.  N/A 

3. South Camden Water & Sewer District:  Approved. See attached.  

4. South Mills Fire Department.   Disapproved.  See attached   

5. Postmaster Elizabeth City.    No response. Did not attend TRC meeting. 

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 9 of 11 

 

6. Army Corps of Engineer.     There was a proposed canoe launch located on the North Tract 

adjacent to the canal, however was removed based on attached email from Army Corps. 

7. Superintendent Camden County Schools.  Approved with comments.  See attached. 

8. Superintendent/Transportation Director of Schools. Approved with following comment. 

9. Sheriff’s Office.    Disapproved.  See attached. 

10. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.    Reviewed with comments/conditions.  See attached. 

11. NCDOT.   No response.   

12. Parks & Recreation.  No response. 

13. Mediacom.    No response.   

14. Albemarle EMC.   No response. 

15. Century Link.   No response.    

16. Pasquotank EMS.   Street names approved. 

 

 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY    

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:   

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 

 CAMA Plan future land use maps has land identified as a Planned Unit Development. 

 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

  

Comprehensive Plan has North Tract designated as Village Mixed Use and South Tract as Village 

Residential (VR).   Location of land is within the Core Village of South Mills. 

 

   

PLANS CONSISTENCY – cont. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

There will be two accesses with a third maintenance access for the North Tract.  There will be two 

accesses off Main Street for the South Tract.   

 

  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 10 of 11 

 

 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 

 
 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

Endangering the public health and safety? 

 

Based on TRC input from Sherriff and SM Fire, 

project could have impact on public safety 

based on manning and infrastructure concerns.    

 

 

 

Injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property.    

 

Without any evidence to the contrary - staffs 

opinion is that application does not appear to 

injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property. 

 

Harmony with the area in which it is located. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps has land designated as Village Residential 

and Village Mixed Use.  CAMA Future Land 

use Maps has land designated as Planned Unit 

Development (PUD). 

 

 

 

 

Schools:  Proposed development will generate 

301 students after build out (.67 per SFD X 383 

= 256.6) & (.23 MFU X 197 units = 45.3).  High 

School over capacity.   (See breakdown next 

page.) 

 

Fire and rescue:    Denied based on lack of 

supporting infrastructure. 

 

Law Enforcement:  Denied.  

Manning/equipment.

 

 

 

 

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 11 of 11 

 

 

Student Generation Rates (Single Family Dwelling = .67 students)  (Other = .23 students) 

 

                                                      Single Family                                 

 

Grandy Primary (.29)                383 lots X .29 = 111                       

Grandy Intermediate (.18)        383 lots X .18 =  68.9                     

Camden Middle (.07)                 383 lots X .07 =  26.8 

Camden High School (.13)        383 lots X .13 =  49.7        

 

                                                   Total students:  256.4 

 

                                                     Other (Townhomes) 

 

Grandy Primary (.08)                197 units X .08 = 15.7 

Grandy Intermediate (.08)        197 units X .08 = 15.7 

Camden Middle (.04)                 197 units X .04 =  8 

Camden High School (.03)        197 units X .03 =  6 

 

                                                  Total students:      45.4 

 

                    Overall total students generated:  301.8 (over the life of the project.) 

 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION:     
 

- Portion of Union Camp Road within the development from Camelia Drive to eastern property line 

shall be paved to NCDOT standards. 

- Extend Phasing Schedule out 5 years. 

- Fee in lieu of acreage for public park can be utilized for providing landscaping along Main Street  

- Need to interconnect (sidewalk, crosswalk) North and South Tracts 

- Provide sidewalk along Main Street for South Tract with trees. 

- Landscaping around ponds (prevents alligator weed and stagnant water) 

- Terms and Conditions reflect providing up to 50,000 sf of commercial yet Master Plan shows 

35,000 sf? 

-  

7.I.c

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



South Mills Landing PD - Draft Terms and Conditions 

Statement of Planning Objectives: To build a community that has a 
creative design, providing a mix of residential uses in close proximity to 
one another, while at the same time providing an efficient use of open 
space that promotes an active lifestyle and a strong sense of community. 
Commercial development is also proposed to serve both the needs of the 
residents of this development and of the adjacent South Mills community. 

a. The Phasing Plan attached to this terms and conditions document and 
incorporated herein by reference as Schedule A (attached) shall be 
adhered to except that the Developer may determine the sequence in 
which phases are developed. The Developer shall provide an annual 
report updating the Phasing Plan for the development. 

b. Development on the Property shall be connected to Camden County's 
permitted and approved central wastewater treatment and disposal 
system, and to the South Mills Water Association water system. Fire 
protection shall be provided in accordance with the UDO Standards. 

c. The density/intensity standards, dimensional standards and 
development standards for development of the Property shall be in 
accordance with the Master Plan and Schedule B (attached), 
subject to the degree of flexibility provided in these conditions. 

d. Community form and design for development of the Property shall 
conform generally to the sample building elevations attached in 
Appendix A. Variations may be provided and shall be permitted in 
colors, materials, and architectural detailing that are compatible with 
the design concept. 

e. Transportation: The main subdivision entrance to the North tract will 
be connected to Horseshoe Road, which will be designed and 
improved in accordance with recommendations made in the Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA) for this development as approved by NCDOT. 
The entrance to the South tract from Main Street (US 17 Business) 
will be also be designed and improved in accordance with 
recommendations made in the TIA as approved by NCDOT. Internal 
roads shall be designed in accordance with North Carolina 
Department of Transportation ("NCDOT") standards and shall be 
approved by NCDOT prior to construction. Roadways shall be laid 
out generally as shown on the Master Plan and in accordance with 
the typical sections shown on the Master Plan drawings. 

f. Potable Water: Water shall be supplied by South Mills Water 
Association via connections with the existing water distribution 
system. Individual lots and dwellings shall be metered. The 
Developer shall model the water system to demonstrate adequate 

PPAB 5368575v2 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



water flow and pressure for fighting fires while meeting the maximum 

day domestic demand. 

g. Wastewater: A wastewater collection system will be constructed by 
the Developer and then dedicated to and managed by Camden 
County. 

h. Stormwater: 

i. On-site stormwater will be managed by construction a series 
of stormwater management ponds that will be interconnected 
and will retain and slow-release stormwater to existing 
drainage outlets both directly and indirectly. 

In addition to modeling and retaining stormwater to the UDO 
and Stormwater Manual standard for the 10-year developed 
condition and runoff, stormwater will be modeled for the 100-
year storm event and property line berms constructed as 
necessary to manage the 100-year storm without adversely 
impacting neighboring properties. 

Stormwater will be conveyed to on-site retention ponds 
through a combination of curbs with inlets, stormwater pipes 
and open, vegetated swales. 

The Improvements set forth in this section shall be maintained 
by the Developer, or a management association created by 
the Developer. 

Improvements will be generally as shown on sheet _ of 
the Master Plan drawings 

Up to 50,000 square feet of commercial development will be constructed 
in the area set aside for commercial development on the Master Plan. 
Water and sewer lines will be stubbed to the commercial area property 
line in Phase 1 of the development. 

Perimeter compatibility shall be addressed as follows: 

i. 50 foot vegetated buffers shall be provided to existing 
residential development along areas adjacent properties. 

ii. Commercial development is located away from 
existing development and adjacent to US 17 Bypass.. 

iii. Architectural Features: Building placement, 
design features, orientation and entryways 
promote compatibility with adjacent properties. 

k. Environmental Protection and Monitoring: Wetlands subject to the 
jurisdiction of the US Army Corps of Engineers have been delineated 
and confirmed by the Corps of Engineers. The Association documents 
(Declaration) will include provisions that prohibit the filling of wetlands 
and prohibit the clearing of any vegetated buffer areas other than 
incidental tree cutting and vegetation removal, and for stormwater 
management. 

PPAB 5368575v2 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



The Association, either itself or via a management entity, will assume 
responsibility for ongoing operation and maintenance of all stormwater 
management facilities in accordance with the Camden County UDO 
requirements and all NCDEQ permit requirements. The Association 
dues will be structured in a way that funds are provided for the upkeep 
of these facilities, as well as a contribution to off-site ditch maintenance. 

I. Developer general responsibilities: 

The developer is responsible to design and construct or install the 
required and proposed on site public utilities in compliance with 
applicable county, state and federal regulations. 

The developer shall dedicate to the public the right-of-way and 
easements necessary to construct or install the required and 
proposed on site public facilities in compliance with applicable county, 
state and federal regulations. 

PPAB 5368575v2 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Schedule A 

PHASING SCHEDULE 

PHASE AREA  

(AC.) 

OPEN SPACE 

(AC.) 

UNITS 

Residential Development 

DEVELOPMENT EST. RECORDING OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 

INTENSITY (D.U/A.C) YEAR 

1 42.5 12.5 129 3.04 2021 Main Entrance, Roundabout, Portion of Multi-use Path, Mail 

Kiosk; Main drainage outlet 

2 42.6 7.5 178 4.18 2022 Clubhouse; Pedestrian Connesctivity 

3 39.2 12 134 3.42 2023 Additional Mail Kiosk, Canoe Launch; Continue M.U.P. 

4 42.5 15.5 99 2.33 2024 

5 18.2 4 41 2.25 2025 

TOTAL 185 51.5 580 3.14   
 
        

Commercial Development 

PHASE AREA OPEN SPACE COMM. MAXIMUM COMM. EST. CONST. 

  (AC.) (AC.) S.F. AREA RATIO YEAR 

A 1 0.2 6852 0.2 2024 

B 1.25 0.2 7000 0.2 2025 

C 1 0.1 7139 0.2 2027 

D 1.25 0.1 6800 0.2 2029 

E 1 0.2 6813 0.2 2031 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Schedule B 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS & SETBACKS 

Style: 

  Commercial Single-Family Lot Townhome Lot 

Min. Lot Size: N/A 6500 SF 1800 SF 

Typ. Lot Size: N/A 7000-12000 SF 1800-2400 SF 

Min. Lot Width: N/A 40' 20' 

Typ. Lot Width: N/A 60' 20'-25' 

Front Setback: 10' (parking)/50' (bldg.) 10' 0 

Side Setback: 10' (parking) 20' 0 

Corner Side Setback: 10' (parking) 15' 0 

Max. Front Setback: N/A 75' 40' 

Max. Height: 35' 35' 35' 

Max. Bldg. Size: 20,000 SF 4,800 SF 22,000 SF 

Max. Lot Coverage: 90% 60% 100% 

Max. Comm. Floor Area Ratio: 0.40 N/A N/A 
 

Min. Set-back to Adj. 50' 50' 50' 

Residential Dev. 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
11

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

11
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 166



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
27

04
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
27

04
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.B 

Meeting Date:   June 01, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Library Report 

 

Attachments: Library Report (DOCX) 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 169



Camden County Public Library 

APRIL 2020 Statistics 
Library Closed April 1-30 due to COVID 19 

 

Visitor Count 0 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 927* 

Computer/ Wireless Use 0/228 

Questions Answered 113 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Adult Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 2/35 

Days/Hours Open 0/0 

# Items in Collection 19,281 

Library Card Holders 2,574 

*Cloud Library Circulation increased 152.3% compared to 4/19 

 

Comparison by Year 

2018-2020 

  

           
 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Apr-18 Apr-19 Apr-20

Circulation

1471
1613

0
0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

18-Apr 19-Apr 20-Apr

Attendance

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
14

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)



In attempting to follow the guidelines for Phase I of Governor Cooper’s plan to safely reopen our 

state during the COVID-19 crisis: 

• We followed a “minimal staffing” model on-site to allow social distancing. 

• Two full-time staff members worked on-site Monday – Friday, 9 am – 5 pm to assist patrons 

remotely, answer phone calls, and complete in-person work responsibilities. 

• One full-time staff member worked  remotely Monday - Friday. 

• Work was logged using a shared Google Sheets file. 

• The County Librarian supervised library employees and verified timesheets. 

 

Library staff were engaged, focused, and productive during closure and embraced the opportunity to 

focus on:  

• Program planning – including our Summer Reading Program. 

• Weeding the collection. 

• Shelf reading. 

• Cleaning up cataloging records. 

• Customer database management. 

• Computer update project. 

• Professional development. 

• Deep cleaning the building. 

 

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
14

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Commissioner Garry Meiggs

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	4. Public Hearings
	A. 2701 : Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget
	Printout: 2701 : Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget
	a. FY20-21 Budget Message FINAL_Signed
	b. 20-21 schedule of board adjustments
	c. 20-21 BUDGET ORDINANCE
	d. Schedule of Fees 20-21

	B. 2702 : Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program
	Printout: 2702 : Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program
	a. Capital Improvement Program 20-24 FINAL


	5. New Business
	A. 2712 : Tax Report
	Printout: 2712 : Tax Report
	a. Tax Report

	B. 2703 : Resolution 2020-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions
	Printout: 2703 : Resolution 2020-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions
	a. Resolution 2020-06-01

	C. 2707 : Boomerang Design - Fee Proposal
	Printout: 2707 : Boomerang Design - Fee Proposal
	a. Boomerang Design Agenda Summary
	b. Boomerang Design Fee Proposal


	6. Board Appointments
	A. 2705 : Tourism Development Authority
	Printout: 2705 : Tourism Development Authority


	7. Consent Agenda
	A. 2699 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 29, 2020
	Printout: 2699 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 29, 2020
	a. bocminutes_042920

	B. 2698 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 4, 2020
	Printout: 2698 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 4, 2020
	a. bocminutes_050420

	C. 2700 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 13, 2020
	Printout: 2700 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 13, 2020
	a. bocminutes_051320

	D. 2710 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2710 : Budget Amendments
	a. 2019-20-BA019
	b. 2019-20-BA020

	E. 2709 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2709 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	F. 2708 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2708 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV Monthly Report July, 2020

	G. 2715 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2715 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	H. 2706 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2706 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	I. 2711 : Set Public Hearing - South Mills Landing
	Printout: 2711 : Set Public Hearing - South Mills Landing
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Final
	b. Cover Letter
	c. Staff Findings
	d. Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules2
	e. TRCinput


	8. County Manager's Report
	9. Commissioners' Reports
	10. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2704 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2704 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 2714 : Library Report
	Printout: 2714 : Library Report
	a. Library Report


	11. Other Matters
	12. Adjourn
	Reconvene Board of Equalization and Review
	Adjourn Board of Equalization and Review

	Appendix
	4.A · 2701 : Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget
	4.A.a · FY20-21 Budget Message FINAL_Signed
	4.A.b · 20-21 schedule of board adjustments
	4.A.c · 20-21 BUDGET ORDINANCE
	4.A.d · Schedule of Fees 20-21

	4.B · 2702 : Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program
	4.B.a · Capital Improvement Program 20-24 FINAL

	5.A · 2712 : Tax Report
	5.A.a · Tax Report

	5.B · 2703 : Resolution 2020-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions
	5.B.a · Resolution 2020-06-01

	5.C · 2707 : Boomerang Design - Fee Proposal
	5.C.a · Boomerang Design Agenda Summary
	5.C.b · Boomerang Design Fee Proposal

	6.A · 2705 : Tourism Development Authority
	7.A · 2699 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 29, 2020
	7.A.a · bocminutes_042920

	7.B · 2698 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 4, 2020
	7.B.a · bocminutes_050420

	7.C · 2700 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 13, 2020
	7.C.a · bocminutes_051320

	7.D · 2710 : Budget Amendments
	7.D.a · 2019-20-BA019
	7.D.b · 2019-20-BA020

	7.E · 2709 : School Budget Amendments
	7.E.a · School Budget Amendments

	7.F · 2708 : DMV Monthly Report
	7.F.a · DMV Monthly Report July, 2020

	7.G · 2715 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	7.G.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	7.H · 2706 : Tax Collection Report
	7.H.a · Tax Collection Report

	7.I · 2711 : Set Public Hearing - South Mills Landing
	7.I.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Final
	7.I.b · Cover Letter
	7.I.c · Staff Findings
	7.I.d · Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules2
	7.I.e · TRCinput

	10.A · 2704 : Register of Deeds Report
	10.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	10.B · 2714 : Library Report
	10.B.a · Library Report



